
Ds:CPC/2016/2016-11-15 Minutes.doc   

CITY OF RICHARDSON 
CITY PLAN COMMISSION MINUTES – NOVEMBER 15, 2016 

 
The Richardson City Plan Commission met on November 15, 2016, at 7:00 p.m. at City Hall in 
the Council Chambers, 411 W. Arapaho Road, Richardson, Texas. 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Gerald Bright, Chairman 
  Ron Taylor, Vice Chair 
  Janet DePuy, Commissioner 
  Bill Ferrell, Commissioner 
  Marilyn Frederick, Commissioner 
  Tom Maxwell, Commissioner 
  Randy Roland, Commissioner 
  Ken Southard, Alternate 
  Stephen Springs, Alternate 
   
CITY STAFF PRESENT: Sam Chavez, Assistant Director – Dev. Svcs. – Planning 
  Chris Shacklett, Sr. Planner 
  Mohamed Bireima, Planner 
  Kathy Welp, Executive Secretary 
 
BRIEFING SESSION 
 
Prior to the start of the regular business meeting, the City Plan Commission met with staff 
regarding staff reports, agenda items and rezoning initiatives.  No action was taken. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 
 
MINUTES 
 
1. Approval of minutes of the regular business meeting of November 1, 2016. 

 
Motion: Commissioner Maxwell made a motion to approve the minutes as presented; 

second by Vice Chair Taylor.  Motion approved 7-0. 
 
CONSENT ITEM 

All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Plan Commission 
and will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below. There will be no separate discussion of 
these items unless desired, in which case any item(s) may be removed from the Consent Agenda for 
separate consideration. 
 

2. Site and Landscape Plans – Woodcreek Church (companion to Item 5):  A request for 
approval of a site plan and landscape plan for the development of an 11,145-square foot 
gymnasium/multi-purpose hall and a 17,500-square foot, two-story educational building on 
the south side of the existing sanctuary.  The 27.1-acre site is located at 3400 E. Renner Road 
on the south side of Renner Road between Shiloh Road and Telecom Parkway.    
 

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

November 15, 2016 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2016/2016-11-15 CPCMinutes.doc  2 

3. Site Plan and Landscape Plan – Mark Twin Elementary School (companion to Item 6):  
A request for approval of a site and landscape plan for two (2) building additions totaling 
8,581-square feet to the existing 55,179- square foot elementary school.  The site is located at 
1200 Larkspur Drive on the southeast corner of Larkspur Drive and Glenville Drive. 
 
Motion: Commissioner Frederick made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as 

presented; second by Commissioner Roland.  Motion approved 7-0. 
 
ACTION ITEM 
 
4. Master Sign Plan – UTD Northside:  A request for approval of a master sign plan for UTD 

Northside.  The 25 acre site is located on the north side of Synergy Park Boulevard west of 
Floyd Road. 
 
Mr. Chavez advised the applicant was requesting approval of a Master Sign Plan (MSP) for 
Phases I and II of the UTD Northside planned development.  He added that under the two 
ordinances governing the property there were provisions allowing the applicant to adhere to 
Chapter 18 (Sign Code) of the City’s Subdivision regulations or submit a Master Sign Plan 
that would allow unique design standards in regards to size, color, type, design and location. 
 
Mr. Chavez stated the MSP would establish consistency while allowing flexibility and 
creativity and identified nine (9) sign types:   

 

 Project Brand Feature (Graphics .01 - .02) 
 Building Address Graphics (Graphics .03 - .04) 
 Primary & Secondary Vehicular Directional (Graphics .05 - .07) 
 Freestanding Pedestrian Directional (Graphics .08 - .09) 
 Garage Entry/Exit Identification (Graphics .10 - .11) 
 Marketing Banner Graphic (Graphics .12 - .13) 
 Building Portal Identification and Building Number Graphic (Graphics .14 - .16) 
 Retail Tenant Graphic (Graphics .17 - .20) 
 Vehicular Regulatory Signs –Standard D.O.T. Signs (Graphics .21) 

 
Mr. Chavez concluded his presentation by noting that each sign type in the MSP included 
their purpose and scaled elevations illustrating the context for placement of the sign.  He 
added that each elevation was followed by detailed specifications including illumination 
allowances, description, materials, location, and maximum sign face and copy area, 
 
Commissioner Roland asked if the typical City directional signs would still be on the 
perimeter of the development as opposed to the proposed vehicle directional signs. 
 
Mr. Chavez replied the streets within the development were private streets and would contain 
the signs listed in the MSP. 
 

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

November 15, 2016 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2016/2016-11-15 CPCMinutes.doc  3 

Chairman Bright asked if the proposed MSP was similar to the one approved for the CityLine 
project and Mr. Chavez said it was. 
 
Commissioner Frederick asked staff if the listed minimum size would be adequate for the 
venue. 
 
Mr. Chavez replied the sizes listed were the maximum square footage. 
 
Motion: Commissioner Ferrell made a motion to approve the Master Sign Plan for UTD 

Northside as presented; second by Commissioner Roland.  Motion approved 7-0. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
5. Replat – Rockwell-Shiloh Subdivision, Lot 3D (companion to Item 2):  Consider and take 

the necessary action on a request for approval of a replat of Rockwell-Shiloh Subdivision, 
Lot 3C, to abandon and dedicate easements to accommodate the development of a single 
story gymnasium/multi-purpose hall and a two-story educational building on the south side 
of the existing sanctuary.  The 27.1-acre site is located at 3400 E. Renner Road on the south 
side of Renner Road between Shiloh Road and Telecom Parkway. 
 
Mr. Bireima stated the replat was being requested to abandon and dedicate easements to 
accommodate the development of a single story gymnasium/multi-purpose hall and a two-
story educational building on the south side of the existing sanctuary.  He added the 
easements would include the following: 
 

 Remaining Easements – 40’ front setbacks along Renner Road and Breckinridge 
Boulevard; variable width drainage and floodway easement bisecting the property 
from north to south; 30’ drainage easements within the northern and middle portion 
of the property; 10’ pedestrian and access easement along the north property line; 10’ 
utility easement along the south property line; various electric delivery easements 
along the north and west property lines. 

 

 Dedicated Easements – 10’ water easement looping around the existing and proposed 
buildings within the northern portion of the property. 

 

 Abandoned Easements – Portions of the existing variable-width drainage and 
floodway easements within the middle portion of the property. 

 
With no questions for staff, Chairman bright opened the public hearing. 
 
No comments in favor or opposed were received and Chairman Bright closed the public 
hearing. 
 
Motion: Commissioner Roland made a motion to approve the replat for the Rockwell-

Shiloh Subdivision, Lot 3D as presented; second by Commissioner DePuy.  
Motion approved 7-0. 

 

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

November 15, 2016 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2016/2016-11-15 CPCMinutes.doc  4 

6. Replat – Mark Twain Elementary School Addition, Lot 1A, Block A (companion to 
Item 3):  Consider and take the necessary action on a request for approval of a replat of Mark 
Twain Elementary School Addition, Lot 1A, Block A, for two (2) building additions totaling 
8,581 square feet to the existing 55,179-square foot Mark Twain Elementary School.  The 
10.299-acre site is located at 1200 Larkspur Drive on the southeast corner of Larkspur Drive 
and Glenville Drive. 
 
Mr. Shacklett advised the proposed replat would accommodate two additions to the 
elementary school totaling 8,581 square feet and would be located on the east side of the 
school.  He added the applicant was also proposing to dedicate a new 10-foot utility easement 
along the east and south sides of the building, as well as a 22-foot wide mutual access 
easement at the northeast corner of the site that connects the school to the adjacent city park. 
 
Mr. Shacklett concluded his presentation by noting the existing drainage and utility 
easements would remain on the site, and the replat complied with the City’s subdivision 
regulations. 
 
With no questions for staff, Chairman bright opened the public hearing. 
 
No comments in favor or opposed were received and Chairman Bright closed the public 
hearing. 
 
Motion: Commissioner Maxwell made a motion to approve the replat for Mark Twain 

Elementary School Addition, Lot 1A, Block A as presented; second by Vice Chair 
Taylor.  Motion approved 7-0. 

 
7. Zoning File 16-25 – Jasmine Hill:  Consider and take the necessary action on a request for a 

change in zoning from R-1250-M Residential to PD Planned Development for the RP-1500-
M Patio Home District to accommodate a single-family patio home development on 
approximately 5.43 acres to be located at the northwest corner of Abrams Road and 
Buckingham Road. 
 
Mr. Chavez explained the applicant was requesting to rezone the property from a residential 
district to a residential PD Planned Development district to accommodate the development of 
a 35-lot, single-family patio home subdivision.  He added the property was surrounded on 
three sides (north, south and west) by residentially zoned property and on the west side, 
across Abrams Road, by commercial property.   
 
Mr. Chavez noted the applicant was proposing a minimum 10-foot landscape buffer along the 
south and east property lines and within the buffer there would be a minimum 6-foot 
masonry high screening wall.  He added that along the north and west property lines there 
would be a 6-foot tall, board-on-board cedar fence that would be owned and maintained by 
the Homeowners Association (HOA). 
 

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

November 15, 2016 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2016/2016-11-15 CPCMinutes.doc  5 

Mr. Chavez discussed the minimum lot square footage, setbacks, proposed utility/pedestrian 
easement, and common area lots internal to the site.  In addition, the streets would be private 
and maintained by the HOA, and there would be two entrances – a gated entry on Abrams 
Road used for emergency access only, and the main gated entry on Buckingham Road. 
 
Regarding the changes to the existing roadways, Mr. Chavez indicated the applicant would 
construct a new median opening on Buckingham Road, as well as the right-hand turn and 
deceleration lane along Abrams Road. 
 
Commissioner DePuy asked how many cars could park at each residence and Mr. Chavez 
said there were two spaces in the garage and two spaces in the driveway. 
 
Commissioner Ferrell asked if the main street would be a fire lane, would it be striped, and 
what the applicant was referring to when they asked for a partial sidewalk waiver. 
 
Mr. Chavez replied the streets would be 27 feet wide, which was a typical size for a city 
street, but the only difference would be the streets would be considered an easement. 
 
Regarding the partial sidewalk waiver, Mr. Chavez said a single-family, patio home district 
required sidewalks, but in-lieu-of the sidewalks the applicant was requesting the 15-foot wide 
utility/pedestrian easements along the perimeter of the development to allow residents the 
opportunity to walk throughout the neighborhood. 
 
Chairman Bright acknowledged the applicant was proposing a 6-foot board-on-board fence 
on the north and west sides of property, but wanted to know if there was a requirement for 
screening along those areas. 
 
Mr. Chavez replied there would typically be fences around individual homes, but in order to 
provide a compatible situation the applicant was requesting the 6-foot, board-on-board, cedar 
fences the HOA would maintain. 
 
With no other questions for staff, Chairman Bright opened the public hearing. 
 
Ms. Amna Paryani, 920 Abrams Road, Richardson, Texas, said they had been working to 
bring the project to fruition for a long time and had worked with representatives from the 
Rosehill Estates subdivision.  She added the new homes would be high-end and add value to 
the surrounding neighborhoods. 
 
Mr. Kelly Dockweiler, Loeb Architects, 1909 Forestwood Drive, Richardson, Texas, stated 
the preliminary plans illustrated that a majority of the lots in the subdivision would be 
developed on 35-foot wide by 60 feet deep lots and the remaining lots would be 40 feet wide 
by 60 feet deep.  He added the lots along the west side of property would be developed with 
sensitivity to the adjacent Rosehill Estate homes by moving rear facing bedroom windows to 
the sides of the homes.     
 

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

November 15, 2016 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2016/2016-11-15 CPCMinutes.doc  6 

Commissioner Frederick noted the floor plans mentioned the term “OTB” and asked for a 
definition, and Commission DePuy asked for the price range on the homes and would the 
master bedrooms be on the first floor. 
 
Mr. Dockweiler replied OTB meant “open to below” and the master bedrooms would be on 
the first floor. 
 
Regarding the price range on the homes, Ms. Parayani said the cost would be in the range of 
$490,000.00 to $500,000.00.   
 
Commissioner Ferrell asked if the developer had any other projects completed or in the 
works that would be similar to the proposed project. 
 
Ms. Parayani said the project was their first, but they had used Ingram Terrace, Savoy Trace 
and Savoy Landing as models for Jasmine Hill. 
 
Commissioner Roland asked how many meetings or conversations had been held with 
residents from the adjacent Rosehill Estates. 
 
Ms. Parayani said she had met twice with members of the Board of Directors for Rosehill 
Estates, and Mr. Duckweiler said he had spoken to and exchanged emails with residents from 
the neighborhood and their main concern was to keep them apprised of the project as it 
developed. 
 
Ms. Lisa Fletcher, 913 Hillsdale Drive, Richardson, Texas, said she was the owner of one of 
the three homes at the northeast corner of Buckingham Road and Greenville Avenue and was 
wondering if those three homes could be included in the project.   
 
Ms. Parayani replied that she had not contacted the owners of those homes, but thought 
Rosehill Estates had tried to contact them and did not know the outcome. 
 
Mr. Chavez said the property owners of the three homes would have to be part of the initial 
request to include them in the zoning change and from a design standpoint he did not think 
those homes could be incorporated into the proposed development. 
 
Ms. Valerie Standifer, 512 Harvest Glen Drive, Richardson, Texas, stated she was generally 
in favor of the project and asked if the property was part of the Buckingham Annex. 
 
Mr. Chavez replied that the property was not part of the Buckingham Annex.   
 
Ms. Barbara Edmondson, 301 Prince Albert Court, Richardson, Texas, said she was speaking 
on behalf of some of her neighbors and they were pleased the property was going to be 
rezoned as residential, but was concerned about windows on the second floor and privacy, 
the height of the fences – either 6 or 8 feet, and the size of the homes on such small lots.   
 

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

November 15, 2016 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2016/2016-11-15 CPCMinutes.doc  7 

Mr. Jeff Large, 885 Cotswolds Court, Richardson, Texas, asked if the proposed three-foot 
easement between the existing homes and the proposed homes was in addition to or inclusive 
of the required setback.  He also noted that most of the existing homes on the property line 
had 8-foot fences and was concerned about second-story windows on the new homes facing 
the adjoining properties in Rosehill Estates. 
 
Commissioner Roland asked if the applicant’s property was adjacent to the open field or the 
school and wanted to know the speaker’s description of the existing foliage along the 
property line. 
 
Mr. Large said his home was immediately adjacent to Lots 22 and 23 and described the 
foliage behind his home as mostly bamboo with some larger cedar and hackberry trees on his 
side of the property. 
 
No other comments in favor or opposed were received and Chairman Bright called on the 
applicant for any rebuttal comments. 
 
Mr. Dockweiler said he wanted to address the concerns from the speakers and started with 
the question about the footprint of a home versus the size of the lot.  He stated that once the 
garage was setback, a square footage calculation could be made, minus the size of the garage 
and any staircase, leaving the maximum air conditioned square footage a lot could contain. 
 
Commissioner Ferrell asked if the fence would be three feet off the property line. 
 
Ms. Parayani replied the three-foot easement would be between the existing fences and the 
new fence for Jasmine Hill.  She added that she was not aware if the fences for Rosehill 
Estates were 8 feet high but had no problem with making the fence for Jasmine Hill the same 
height. 
 
Mr. Chavez added the 3-foot fence maintenance easement was included in the 10-foot rear 
yard setback.   
 
Commissioner Roland asked if the Jasmine Hill fences would abut the Rosehill Estate fences 
and Mr. Chavez said they could, which would put the easement inside the Jasmine Hill lots. 
 
Chairman Bright asked if the proposal specifically stated the easement would be inside the 
Jasmine Hill lots or was the location up to the discretion of the developer.  He also wanted to 
know if the proposal listed 6-foot or 8-foot fences. 
 
Mr. Chavez said the proposal stated a minimum 6-foot high, board-on-board fence, but it did 
not dictate where the easement would be located.  He suggested the Commission could add 
language to the proposal stating “the 6-foot tall fence shall be erected at the property line.”   
 

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

November 15, 2016 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2016/2016-11-15 CPCMinutes.doc  8 

Chairman Bright asked if it was possible to determine if the Rosehill Estates fences were 6 or 
8 feet tall, and if there was anything in the proposal to prevent the second-story windows of 
the Jasmine Hill homes from looking down into the Rosehill Estate homes. 
 
Ms. Parayani said she would match the height of the existing Rosehill Estate fences. 
 
Regarding the second-story windows, Mr. Chavez said there was nothing in the proposal to 
prevent second story windows facing the Rosehill Estate homes.   
 
Mr. Dockweiler stated that any second story bedroom would have to have windows for 
egress and those windows would have to be at a certain height; however, he suggested facing 
the windows to the side yard of the homes that abut Rosehill Estate homes.   
 
Mr. Chavez suggested adding the following language to the proposal regarding second story 
windows:  “second story windows would be prohibited on west building façades along the 
west boundary except where required by the City of Richardson’s Building Code.” 
 
Mr. Dockweiler asked that in-lieu-of a prohibition to windows on the west side of buildings 
he suggested windows could be installed at 7 feet from the floor to let in light and prevent 
anyone from looking down into the adjacent home or yard.  He added that he would also like 
to have the flexibility to do a section study to determine if anything could be seen through a 
rear-facing window. 
 
Commissioner Roland suggested a revision to Mr. Chavez’ statement to read “no second 
story, rear-facing bedroom windows, except where required by city code, would be permitted 
on Lots 22 through 29.”  He added that second-story, rear-facing bedroom windows for Lot 
22 through 29 would be placed on the sides of the homes. 
 
Commissioner Maxwell said he did not think Mr. Roland’s proposed verbiage would cover a 
second-story, center bedroom at the rear of the home that would need a rear facing window 
to meet the City’s egress code. 
 
Mr. Dockweiler replied that the possibility mentioned by Mr. Maxwell was remote at best 
because the homes would only be 35 feet wide, therefore, if both second-story rooms were 
bedrooms, the windows would face to the sides, and if one room was a game room or open to 
below the window could be high glass (7 feet from floor) or some other type of window 
keeping in mind the Rosehill Estate homes. 
 
Commissioner Maxwell asked staff if the sight-line studies mentioned by Mr. Dockweiler 
would have to be provided to the city. 
 
Mr. Chavez thought it would be better to codify the language in the PD ordinance regarding 
the lots that abut Rosehill Estates. 
 

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

November 15, 2016 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2016/2016-11-15 CPCMinutes.doc  9 

Commissioner Southard asked if the concerns could be addressed by having a requirement 
for “lack of transparency” in the windows facing Rosehill Estates. 
 
Mr. Dockweiler thought Mr. Southard’s suggestion was a good idea and that it would work 
for the lots bordering Rosehill Estates.  He added that a product called vision glass might be 
appropriate and would allow the introduction of light without being opaque.   
 
Vice Chair Taylor noted that his home had a similar type window that allowed light to come 
in but restricted the view. 
 
Commissioner DePuy asked if vision glass would be used on the bedroom windows to the 
side of the homes so there would not be a problem with line of sight into the home next door. 
 
Mr. Dockweiler said he would not envision doing that as a standard, but could offer it as a 
“buyer option” to homeowners. 
 
Ms.Parayani closed her comments by stating she thought the development would be beautiful 
and bring a lot of value to the area, and Mr. Dockweiler noted the developer and 
development team were all members of the community and very excited about the project. 
 
Commissioner Springs said it seemed the Commission was generally in favor of the proposed 
PD and if it was approved, the amendments to the PD should contain a statement similar to 
“any second-story vision glass on the western property line should be translucent; and the 
fence constructed should be in keeping with the height of the existing fence of the adjacent 
neighbor.” 
 
Commissioner DePuy said she had concerns about matching the height of the adjacent 
neighbor’s fence and Ms. Parayani said they would only have an 8-foot fence along the west 
side of the property and the remaining fences would be 6 feet. 
 
Chairman Bright asked if the fences for the Rosehill Estate homes were all one height. 
 
Mr. Chavez suggested it might be better to have the ordinance state a minimum 8-foot fence 
would be erected and, if so, Exhibit B, Item K (2) and (3) would have to be amended. 
 
Mr. Dockweiler said he thought the comments from Mr. Springs regarding matching fence 
heights would be a better approach and noted that if the existing fence was 6 feet and a new 
6-foot fence was constructed there would be value to both sides of the fence line because less 
shadow would protrude into the yard allowing better vegetation growth. 
 
Mr. Chavez pointed out that Mr. Dockweiler’s statement could be construed as arbitrary and 
if one backyard has a 6-foot fence and the next an 8-foot fence it would undulating fence 
line.  He added that from a zoning standpoint, the height of the fence should be very 
straightforward. 
 

APPROVED



Richardson City Plan Commission Minutes  

November 15, 2016 

 

 

 Ds:CPC/2016/2016-11-15 CPCMinutes.doc  10 

Mr. Dockweiler replied they would be happy to concede the point and provide an 8-foot 
fence around the perimeter of the development. 
 
With no further comments in favor or opposed, Chairman Bright closed the public hearing. 
 
Vice Chair Taylor asked if a non-voting member could craft the motion and Chairman Bright 
said they could. 
 
Commissioner Springs suggested making a motion that recommended approval with the 
condition that properties along the western boundary of the subject parcel shall have second 
floor vision glass that was translucent, and the fence along the western boundary shall be 
required to be 8 feet in height. 
 
Commissioner DePuy disagreed with the statement for “any window on the second floor” 
and Mr. Springs added the statement should read “windows parallel to the western 
boundary”. 
 
Motion: Commissioner Roland made a motion to recommend approval of Zoning File 16-

25 with the added conditions that 1) properties along the western boundary with 
windows parallel to the western boundary shall be required to have second floor 
windows of vision glass that shall be translucent; and 2) fences along the western 
boundary shall be required to be 8 feet in height; second by Vice Chair Taylor.  
Motion approved 7-0. 

 
ADJOURN 
 
With no further business before the Commission, Chairman Bright adjourned the regular 
business meeting at 8:21 p.m. 
 
 
 
_______________________ 
Gerald Bright, Chairman 
City Plan Commission 

APPROVED




